

75150 -158

HOUSE BILL 56

Title:

AN ACT to amend W.S. 31-19 and 31-22 relating to motor vehicle registration; allowing applications beginning December 1; and requiring county treasurer to deliver license plates by mail.

HOUSE BILL 56

Sponsored by: *Memorandum to Bob Engen*

DATE	ACTION	DATE	ACTION
JAN 15 1975	INTRODUCED READ FIRST TIME	FEB 24 1975	RECEIVED FROM SENATE
	REFERRED TO COM. NO. <u>8</u> DELIVERED TO COM. NO. <u>8</u>		SENT TO LSO FOR ENROLLING
JAN 27 1975	RETURNED		RECEIVED FROM LSO ENROLLED
	Recommended Amended and Do Pass PLACED ON GENERAL FILE		HEA NO. <u>70</u>
JAN 28 1975	CONSIDERED IN COM. OF WHOLE Standing Com. Amendment <u>H.B. 56</u>		SIGNED BY SPEAKER <u>2-25-75</u>
	ADOPTED		SIGNED BY PRESIDENT <u>2-25-75</u>
	RECOMMENDED DO PASS		APPROVED BY GOVERNOR <u>2-26-75</u>
JAN 29 1975	READ SECOND TIME		CHAPTER NO. <u>74</u> SESSION LAWS OF WYOMING
JAN 30 1975	Read Third Time		<u>\$485610</u>
	PASSED		
	Ayes <u>60</u> Noes <u>0</u> Excused <u>2</u> Absent <u>0</u>		
	Sent to Senate		
1-30	Sent to LSO		
	ENCLOSSED		
1-31	Sent to Senate		
JAN 31 1975	READ FIRST TIME		
JAN 31 1975	REFERRED TO COM. NO. <u>8</u>		
JAN 31 1975	DELIVERED TO COM. NO. <u>8</u>		
FEB 20 1975	COM. RECOMMENDATION DO PASS		
FEB 21 1975	CONSIDERED IN COM. OF WHOLE DO PASS		
FEB 22 1975	READ SECOND TIME		
FEB 24 1975	READ THIRD TIME		
	PASSED		
	Ayes <u>10</u> Noes <u>1</u> Excused <u>1</u> Absent <u>0</u>		

SENT TO HOUSE

CONTINUED ON BACK

Roll Call of the Senate

of the FORTY-THIRD LEGISLATURE

Of Wyoming

	EXCUSED	ABSENT	AYES	NOES
31 BOYLE	✓			
30 CHRISTENSEN			✓	
29 CUNDALL			✓	
28 DAILY				✓
27 DAVIS			✓	
26 GEIS			✓	
25 HITCHCOCK			✓	
24 JOHNSON			✓	
23 KENDIG			✓	
22 KIMBALL			✓	
21 LEIMBACK			✓	
20 MADSEN			✓	
19 MAJHANOVICH			✓	
18 MOORE			✓	
17 MYERS				
16 NICHOLS			✓	
15 NORRIS			✓	
14 NORTHRUP			✓	
13 NOTT			✓	
12 NOVOTNY			✓	
11 OSTLUND			✓	
10 RECTOR			✓	
9 ROGERS			✓	
8 SADLER			✓	
7 SEARL			✓	
6 SEDAR			✓	
5 STAFFORD			✓	
4 TAGGART			✓	
3 TURNER			✓	
2 WALLOP			✓	
1 MR. PRESIDENT			✓	

PRESENT..... AYES 22
 NOES 1
 EXCUSED 1
 ABSENT 2
 TOTAL 30
 LESS

4256Date 1-30-75

Roll Call of the House

of the
FORTY-THIRD LEGISLATURE
Of Wyoming

	Ayes	Noes	Excused	Absent		Ayes	Noes	Excused	Absent
63 ARNEY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				28 McMILLAN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
62 BOUCHER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				27 MEENAN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
61 BUCK	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				26 MOCKLER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
60 BURNETT	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				25 MORTON			<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	
59 BUTTERFIELD	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				24 O'NEIL	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
58 CHASTEEN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				23 ORRISON	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
57 COFFMAN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				22 OSLUND	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
56 COPENHAVER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				21 PARKS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
55 CRANFILL	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				20 PETERAL	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
54 CREWS			<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>		19 PROFFIT	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
53 CROSS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				18 PROSSER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
52 CURRY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				17 ROTH	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
51 DONLEY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				16 SALISBURY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
50 DOWNING	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				15 SCHWOPE	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
49 EDWARDS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				14 SCOTT	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
48 ENGEN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				13 SIDI	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
47 ESKENS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				12 SIMPSON	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
46 FLEISCHLI	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				11 SMITH	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
45 FRISBY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				10 SMYTH	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
44 GEESEY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				9 STEWART	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
43 A. GRAHAM	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				8 TRUE	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
42 L. GRAHAM	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				7 URBIGKIT	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
41 HANSEN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				6 VAN VELZOR	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
40 HELLBAUM					5 VINICH	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
39 HOLLAND	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				4 WILKINS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
38 HUNTER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				3 ZIMMER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
37 HURSH	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				2 ZUMBRUNNEN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
36 JENNINGS	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				1 MR. SPEAKER	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>			
35 JENSEN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>				PRESENT..... <div style="float: right;"> AYES <u>60</u> NOES EXCUSED <u>2</u> ABSENT TOTAL <u>62</u> LESS </div>				
34 JOHNSON	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								
33 JONES	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								
32 KINNAMAN	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								
31 LEEDY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								
30 McCARTHY	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								
29 McDANIEL	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>								

1975

STATE OF WYOMING

75LSO-158/eng

HOUSE BILL NO. 56

Pre-sale of motor vehicle license plates.

Sponsored by: Representatives TRUE and ENGEN

A BILL

for

1 AN ACT to amend W.S. 31-19 and 31-22 relating to motor
2 vehicle registration; allowing applications beginning
3 December 1; and requiring county treasurer to deliver li-
4 cense plates by mail.

5 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming.

6 Section 1. W.S. 31-19 and 31-22 are amended to read:

7 31-19. Registration generally; exception for vehi-
8 cles acquired from out of state dealer; distribution of
9 receipts; preferential numbers; application and delivery
10 by mail.

11 (a) All owners or those acquiring ownership of motor
12 vehicles ~~prior--to-January-1-of-each-year,~~ subject to the
13 state registration fee and the county registration fee
14 herein required; PRIOR TO JANUARY 1 OF EACH YEAR shall
15 make application for registration and pay the annual state
16 registration fee required by ~~section~~ W.S. 31-18, ~~Wyoming~~

1 ~~Statutes--1957,~~ and the county registration fee herein
2 required on or before March 1 of each year thereafter. 7
3 and All others acquiring ownership of motor vehicles ~~after~~
4 ~~January--1--of--each--year~~ subject to payment of the state
5 registration fee and county registration fee herein
6 required AFTER JANUARY 1 OF EACH YEAR shall make applica-
7 tion for registration and pay the state registration fee
8 and county registration fee ~~before--the--expiration-of~~
9 WITHIN ten (10) days after acquiring ~~such~~ ownership. ~~Pro-~~
10 ~~vided,--however,--that~~ All owners, HOWEVER, acquiring motor
11 vehicles from out of state dealers shall make application
12 for registration and pay the state registration fee and
13 county registration fee ~~before--the--expiration-of~~ WITHIN
14 thirty (30) days after acquiring ~~such~~ ownership. Upon
15 receipt of any application for registration of a motor
16 vehicle as provided in ~~section~~ W.S. 31-16, ~~Wyoming--Stat-~~
17 ~~utes--1957,~~ the county treasurer shall file ~~such~~ THE appli-
18 cation in his office and register ~~such~~ THE motor vehicle
19 with the name and post office address of the owner, manu-
20 facturer or dealer, together with a description of the
21 motor vehicle as given in the application, in a book to be
22 kept and known as the "automobile register" and receipt
23 therefor in quintuplicate, delivering one (1) copy to the
24 owner, who shall write his signature upon his copy with
25 pen and ink in the space provided. and The card shall at

1 all times be carried in any commercial vehicle to which it
2 refers or shall be carried by the person driving or in
3 control of such vehicle who shall display the same upon
4 demand of any peace officer. ~~7--and~~ The county treasurer
5 shall retain one (1) copy in his office, and he shall
6 weekly forward the third copy to the state board of equal-
7 ization, together with the state registration fee so col-
8 lected. ~~7--and~~ He shall daily forward the fourth copy to
9 the office of the state highway patrol at Cheyenne. ~~7~~ The
10 fifth copy, if requested in writing by the sheriff, shall
11 be given daily to the sheriff of his county to be kept in
12 a separate file for that purpose by ~~said~~ THE sheriff. All
13 applications and records other than the record known as
14 the "automobile register" may be destroyed by the ~~country~~
15 COUNTY treasurer after two (2) years from the last day of
16 each registration year. Application for special or
17 preference numbers shall be made to the county treasurer
18 ~~during-the-first-twenty-one-(21)--days--of--each--calendar~~
19 ~~year-and-the-county-treasurer-shall-issue-the-registration~~
20 ~~plates--to-such-applicant~~ PRIOR TO JANUARY 22. Commencing
21 on January 22 of each calendar year, the county treasurer
22 shall issue all registration numbers in consecutive order.

23 (b) AN OWNER MAY APPLY FOR REGISTRATION FOR THE
24 ENSUING CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING DECEMBER 1 OF THE PRE-

1 CEDING YEAR. APPLICATION MAY BE BY MAIL. THE COUNTY
2 TREASURER SHALL DELIVER THE LICENSE PLATES AFTER THE FIRST
3 DAY OF REGISTRATION YEAR OR AS SOON AS PRACTICAL.
4 DELIVERY MAY BE BY MAIL IF THE APPLICANT SO DESIRES. THE
5 COST OF MAILING THE LICENSE PLATES MAY BE BORN BY THE
6 APPLICANT AT THE DISCRETION OF THE COUNTY TREASURER.

7 31-22. Expiration; renewal; use of license plates in
8 succeeding year. All registrations under this act shall
9 expire on December ~~31st~~ 31 of each year. ~~7--and~~ REGISTRA-
10 TION shall be renewed annually ~~and~~ BETWEEN DECEMBER 1 AND
11 MARCH 1 in the same manner and upon the payment of the
12 same fees as provided in this act for original registra-
13 tion. ~~7--such~~ Renewals ~~to~~ take effect on the first day of
14 January of each year, ~~7--provided-that~~ HOWEVER the use of
15 license plates, including dealer license plates, issued
16 during any calendar year is ~~hereby~~ authorized and legal-
17 ized until and including the last day of February of the
18 next succeeding year.

19 Section 2. This act is effective ninety (90) days
20 after adjournment of the session of the legislature at
21 which it was enacted.

22

(END)

1975

STATE OF WYOMING

75LSO-158.01

HOUSE BILL NO. 56

Pre-sale of motor vehicle license plates.

Sponsored by: Representative TRUE



A BILL

for

1 AN ACT to amend W.S. 31-19 and 31-22 relating to motor
2 vehicle registration; allowing applications beginning
3 December 1; and requiring county treasurer to deliver li-
4 cense plates by mail.

5 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming.

6 Section 1. W.S. 31-19 and 31-22 are amended to read:

7 31-19. Registration generally; exception for vehi-
8 cles acquired from out of state dealer; distribution of
9 receipts; preferential numbers; application and delivery
10 by mail.

11 (a) All owners or those acquiring ownership of motor
12 vehicles ~~prior--to-January-1-of-each-year,~~ subject to the
13 state registration fee and the county registration fee
14 herein required, PRIOR TO JANUARY 1 OF EACH YEAR shall
15 make application for registration and pay the annual state
16 registration fee required by ~~section~~ W.S. 31-18, Wyoming

1 ~~Statutes--1957,~~ and the county registration fee herein
2 required on or before March 1 of each year thereafter. ~~7~~
3 ~~and~~ All others acquiring ownership of motor vehicles ~~after~~
4 ~~January--1--of--each--year~~ subject to payment of the state
5 registration fee and county registration fee herein
6 required AFTER JANUARY 1 OF EACH YEAR shall make applica-
7 tion for registration and pay the state registration fee
8 and county registration fee ~~before--the--expiration-of~~
9 WITHIN ten (10) days after acquiring ~~such~~ ownership. ~~Pre-~~
10 ~~vided, however, that~~ All owners, HOWEVER, acquiring motor
11 vehicles from out of state dealers shall make application
12 for registration and pay the state registration fee and
13 county registration fee ~~before-the-expiration-of~~ WITHIN
14 thirty (30) days after acquiring ~~such~~ ownership. Upon
15 receipt of any application for registration of a motor
16 vehicle as provided in ~~section~~ W.S. 31-16, ~~Wyoming--Stat-~~
17 ~~utes-1957,~~ the county treasurer shall file ~~such~~ THE appli-
18 cation in his office and register ~~such~~ THE motor vehicle
19 with the name and post office address of the owner, manu-
20 facturer or dealer, together with a description of the
21 motor vehicle as given in the application, in a book to be
22 kept and known as the "automobile register" and receipt
23 therefor in quintuplicate, delivering one (1) copy to the
24 owner, who shall write his signature upon his copy with
25 pen and ink in the space provided. ~~and~~ The card shall at

1 all times be carried in any commercial vehicle to which it
2 refers or shall be carried by the person driving or in
3 control of such vehicle who shall display the same upon
4 demand of any peace officer. ~~7--and~~ The county treasurer
5 shall retain one (1) copy in his office, and he shall
6 weekly forward the third copy to the state board of equal-
7 ization, together with the state registration fee so col-
8 lected. ~~7--and~~ He shall daily forward the fourth copy to
9 the office of the state highway patrol at Cheyenne. ~~7~~ The
10 fifth copy, if requested in writing by the sheriff, shall
11 be given daily to the sheriff of his county to be kept in
12 a separate file for that purpose by ~~said~~ THE sheriff. All
13 applications and records other than the record known as
14 the "automobile register" may be destroyed by the ~~country~~
15 COUNTY treasurer after two (2) years from the last day of
16 each registration year. Application for special or
17 preference numbers shall be made to the county treasurer
18 ~~during-the-first-twenty-one-(21)--days--of--each--calendar~~
19 ~~year-and-the-county-treasurer-shall-issue-the-registration~~
20 ~~plates--to-such-applicant~~ PRIOR TO JANUARY 22. Commencing
21 on January 22 of each calendar year, the county treasurer
22 shall issue all registration numbers in consecutive order.

23 (b) AN OWNER MAY APPLY FOR REGISTRATION FOR THE
24 ENSUING CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING DECEMBER 1 OF THE PRE-

1 CEDING YEAR. APPLICATION MAY BE BY MAIL. THE COUNTY
2 TREASURER SHALL DELIVER THE LICENSE PLATES BY MAIL IF THE
3 APPLICANT SO DESIRES.

4 31-22. Expiration; renewal; use of license plates in
5 succeeding year. All registrations under this act ~~shall~~
6 expire on December ~~31st~~ 31 of each year. ~~and~~ REGISTRA-
7 TION shall be renewed annually ~~and~~ BETWEEN DECEMBER 1 AND
8 MARCH 1 in the same manner and upon the payment of the
9 same fees as provided in this act for original registra-
10 tion. ~~and such~~ Renewals ~~to~~ take effect on the first day of
11 January of each year, ~~provided that~~ HOWEVER the use of
12 license plates, including dealer license plates, issued
13 during any calendar year is ~~hereby~~ authorized and legal-
14 ized until and including the last day of February of the
15 next succeeding year.

16 Section 2. This act is effective ninety (90) days
17 after adjournment of the session of the legislature at
18 which it was enacted.

19 (END)

W.B. 56

HB56HS1/A

1-27-55
dist

Page 4, line 2

After "PLATES" insert "AFTER THE FIRST
DAY OF REGISTRATION YEAR OR AS SOON AS
PRACTICAL. DELIVERY MAY BE".

(1)

Page 4, line 3

After "period" insert the following:

"THE COST OF MAILING THE LICENSE PLATES
MAY BE BORN BY THE APPLICANT AT THE
DISCRETION OF THE COUNTY TREASURER." --
ENGEN

(2)

(15)